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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward, Tay Ho District, Hanoi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors of Songhong Joint Stock Corporation presents this report together with the
Corporation’s Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31" December 2024.

CORPORATION

Songhong Joint Stock Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation") is the successor of a state-
owned enterprise established under Decision No. 2410/QD-BXD dated December 30, 2005 and Decision No.
1219/Qb-BXD dated August 25, 2006 issued by the Minister of Construction, based on the reorganization of
Song Hong Construction Corporation pursuant to Business Registration Certificate No. 110561 issued by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Phu Tho Province. The Corporation was granted the Enterprise
Registration Certificate No. 2600104283 by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment for the first
time on June 2, 2010, and changed for the 8" time on October 15, 2024.

Abbreviated name: Songhong Corp.

The Corporation’ s Charter capital under the Certificate of Business Registration number 2600104283
changed for the 8" time on October 15, 2024 is VND 270,000,000,000 (In Word: Two hundred seventy
billion Vietnamese Dong), divided into 27,000,000 shares with a par value of VND 10,000 per share.

The Corporation’s stock is currently listed on the UpCOM Stock Exchange with stock code: SHG

The Corporation’s shares are subject to trading restrictions on the UpCOM trading system pursuant to
Decision No. 1133/QD-SGDHN dated October 21, 2024, issued by the Hanoi Stock Exchange.

The Corporation’s registered office is located at: No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward, Tay Ho District, Hanoi.

BOARDS OF MANAGEMENT, SUPERVISORS AND GENERAL DIRECTORS

Members of Boards of Management, Supervisors and General Directors who held the Corporation during the
year and at the date of this report are as follows:

Board of Management

M. Phan Viet Anh Chairman (Appointed Chairman and Dismissed Member of Board
of Management from 01/10/2024)

Mr. Tran Huyen Linh Chairman (Dismissed from 01/10/2024)

Mr. Le Xuan Thi Vice Chairman

Mr. Dang Minh Quang Member (Appointed from 17/02/2024)

Mr. Pham Xuan Vinh Member (Appointed from 17/02/2024)

Mr. Pham Van Nghia Member (Dismissed from 17/02/2024)

Board of Supervisors

Mr. Cao Tien Trung Head of the Board (Appointed from 17/02/2024)

Mrs. Vu Thi Kim Thanh Member (Appointed from 17/02/2024)

Mrs. Le Thi Hong Hanh Member (Appointed from 17/02/2024)

Board of General Directors

Mr. Dang Minh Quang General Director (Appointed from 01/10/2024)

Mr. Phan Viet Anh General Director (Dismissed from 01/10/2024)

Mr. Nguyen Duc Toan Deputy General Director (Dismissed from 08/08/2024)

Mr. Tran Phi Hoang Deputy General Director

Mr. Nguyen Minh Quan Deputy General Director

Mr. Tran Anh Tai Deputy General Director (Dismissed from 17/03/2025)

Mr. Trinh Xuan Duong Deputy General Director




SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward, Tay Ho District, Hanoi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

According to the Board of General Directors, except for the event disclosed in Note 7.3 to The Consolidated
Financial Statements in all material respects, there have been no other significant events occurring after the
balance sheet date, affecting the financial position and operation of the Corporation which would require
adjustments to or disclosures to be made in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2024.

AUDITORS

The Corporation’s Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31™ December 2024 have been
audited by CPA VIETNAM Auditing Company limited - A Member Firm of INPACT.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Corporation’s Board of General Directors is responsible for preparing the Consolidated Financial
Statements, which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Corporation as at 31/12/2024 as
well as of its Consolidated Income and Consolidated Cash flows Statements for the year then ended,
complying with Vietnamese Standards on Accounting, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and
relevant regulations in preparation and disclosure of financial statements. In preparing these Consolidated
financial statements, the Board of General Directors is required to:

o Select appropriate accounting policies and apply them consistently;
e Make judgments and estimates prudently;

e State clearly whether the Accounting Standards applied to the Corporation are followed or not, and all
the material differences from these standards are disclosed and explained in the Consolidated Financial
Statements;

e Design and implement effectively the intemal control system in order to ensure that the preparation and presentation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements are free from material misstatements due to frauds or erors;

e Prepare the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation on the going-concern basis, except for
the cases that the going-concern assumption is considered inappropriate.

The Board of General Directors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Corporation and to ensure that
the Consolidated Financial Statements comply with Vietnamese Standards on Accounting, Vietnamese
Enterprise  Accounting System and relevant legal regulations in preparation and plcscnldllon of the
Consolidated Financial Statements. The Board of General Directors is also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Corporation and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

The Board of General Directors confirms that the Corporation has complied with the above requirements in
prepar mg the Consolidated Financial Statements.

For /ﬁd,cm b:\h If of the Board of General Dlre‘c/to@
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Dang Minh Quang
General Director
Hanoi, 22 May 2025
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+84 (24) 3783 2122 &  www.cpavietnam.vn o '

No: 175/2025/BCKTHN-CPA VIETNAM-NV1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: Boards of Management, Supervisors and General Directors
Songhong Joint Stock Corporation

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Songhong Joint Stock Corporation
as set out on pages 06 to page 43, prepared on 22/05/2025 including the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31/12/2024, and the Consolidated Income Statement, and Consolidated Cash flows Statement for the year
then ended, and Notes to the Consolidated financial statements.

Responsibility of the Board of General Directors

The Corporation’s Board of General Dircctors is responsible for the true and fair preparation and
presentation of these Consolidated financial statements in compliance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial statements, and for the internal control as the
Board of General Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of Consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Victnamese Standards on Auditing. These Standards require us to
comply with the Standards and codes of ethics, to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the Corporation's Consolidated financial statements are there any significant errors or not.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The audit procedures arc sclected based on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of risks of material misstatement in the financial statements due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Corporation's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design appropriate audit procedures to the actual
situation, which is not intended to give an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as cvaluating the overall presentation of the
Consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
Qualified Opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We were unable to obtain sufficient confirmations for the reccivables totaling VND 127.7 billion of the
Corporation and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 (including trade receivables of VND 54.9 billion,
repayments to suppliers of VND 17 billion, and other receivables of VND 55.8 billion); and VND 117.6 billion as
at 31 December 2023 (including trade receivables of VND 51.3 billion, repayments to supplicrs of VND 16.5
billion, and other receivables of VND 49.8 billion). Although we performed alternative audit procedures, we were
also unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the existence, accuracy, completeness, and
collectability of these receivables as at 31 December 2024. Accordingly, we were unable to express an opinion on
the existence, accuracy, completeness, and collectability of these receivables as at 31 December 2024 or on the
potential impact of these matters on the Corporation’s Consolidated financial statements for the year then ended.
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CPAVIETNAM

We were unable to obtain sufficient confirmations for the payables totaling VND 355 billion of the
Corporation and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 (including trade payables of VND 166.2 billion,
prepayments from customers of VND 67.2 billion, other payables of VND 77 billion, and short-term
borrowings of VND 44.6 billion); and VND 350.2 billion as at 31 December 2023 (including trade payables
of VND 156.7 billion, prepayments from customers of VND 67.3 billion, other payables of VND 77.4
billion, and short-term borrowings of VND 48.8 billion). Although we performed alternative audit
procedures, we were also unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the completeness,
existence, and accuracy of these payables as at 31 December 2024. Accordingly, we were unable to express
an opinion on the completeness, existence, and accuracy of these payables or on the potential impact of this
matter on the Corporation’s Consolidated financial statements for the year then ended.

Due to limitations imposed by the subsidiaries, the auditors were not able to attend the physical inventory
counts conducted by the subsidiaries as at December 31, 2024, Based on the information provided and the
alternative audit procedures performed, we were still unable to assess the existence, completeness, and
valuation of inventories amounting to VND 207.7 billion as at December 31, 2024 (VND 211.2 billion as at
December 31, 2023), as well as the required allowance for inventory obsolescence in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of the Corporation. Accordingly, we are unable to express an opinion on
the existence, completeness, and valuation of such inventories, or on the required allowance for inventory
obsolescence and their impact on other items in the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for
the year ended December 31, 2024,

The Corporation has not obtained the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024 of Song
Hong Da Nang Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary of the Corporation, as the company has ceased operations
and has no management or accounting personnel. The data used for consolidation was based on the
unaudited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016, in which total assets amounted to
VND 350.97 billion, total liabilities were. VND 62.05 billion, and equity was negative VND 11.07 billion.
Therefore, we are unable to assess the appropriateness of such data, and accordingly, we are unable to
express an opinion on the fair value of the aforementioned investment or determine whether any adjustments
to these balances are necessary.

The Corporation has not obtained the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024 of its
associates with a total investment value of VND 114.5 billion (VND 19.0 billion as at December 31, 2023),
and of other long-term investees with a total investment value of VND 5.9 billion (VND 1.69 billion as at
December 31, 2023). As a result, we are unable to express an opinion on the existence and valuation of these
financial investments or on their impact on other items in the consolidated financial statements of the
Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2024,

As disclosed in Note 5.7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the balance of construction-in-progress for
the Vung Ang I Thermal Power Plant Project was VND 166.71 billion as at 31 December 2024 (and VND
166.71 billion as at 31 December 2023). Due to changes in design and unit prices, the Corporation and the EPC
contractor — Vietnam Machinery Installation Corporation — are currently reconciling the additional work
volume executed by the Corporation. In addition, interest expenses recoverable from subcontractors will also
be adjusted upon agreement between the Corporation and those subcontractors. The auditors were unable to
estimate the potential impact of these matters on the Corporation’s Consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2024,

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion" section,
the accompanying Consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Songhong Joint Stock Corporation as at December 31, 2024, and its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting System, and applicable legal regulations concerning the preparation and presentation
of Consolidated financial statements.
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CPAVIETNAM

Emphasis of Matter

As disclosed in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, as at 31 December 2024, the Corporation’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by VND 1,095.74 billion. For the financial year then ended, net
cash flows from operating activitics amounted to ncgative VND 1.09 billion. The Corporation had
accumulated losses of VND 1,337.18 billion and a negative equity of VND 1,031.5 billion as at 31
December 2024, The Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern depends on the recovery of
receivables, the improvement of leasing business performance, and financial support from shareholders.
These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern.

As disclosed in Note 5.16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the item “Accrued expenses™ as at 31
December 2024 includes accrued cost of sales for construction projects, which were recognised based on the
subcontracting ratios stated in the subcontract agreements. According to the Corporation’s assessment, these
accrued expenses will be settled upon the finalisation of the projects with the respective subcontractors.

Our qualified opinion is not related to thesc matters.

v —

Phan Thanh Nam Luu Anh Tuan

Deputy General Director Auditor

Audit Practising Registration Certificate Audit Practising Registration Certificate
No. 1009-2023-137-1 No. 1026-2024-137-1

Authorised paper No: 02/2025/UQ-CPA VIETNAM dated 02 January 2025 of Chairman
For and on behalf of

CPA VIETNAM AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED

A member firm of INPACT

Hanoi, 22 May 2025
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Form B 01-DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Tay Ho District, Hanoi

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31* December 2024 ,

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
ASSETS Code Note VND VND
A - CURRENT ASSETS 100 790,211,456,089 934,138,028,951
(100 = 110+120+130+140+150) - -
I. Cashand cash equivalents 110 5.1 3,194,747,607 142,269,240,338
1. Cash 111 3,194,747,607 142,269,240,338
II. Short-term financial investments 120 400,000,0{]6 40{],000,006
1. Short-term financial investments 123 400,000,000 400,000,000
III. Short-term receivables 130 366,622,017,728 367,700,609,283
1. Short-term receivables from customers 131 52 165,172,706,906 170,020,071,780
2. Prepayments to suppliers in short-term 132 53 - 279,707;127,474 280,523,604,747
3. Other short-term receivables 136 54 193,669,544,299 193,694,631,436
4. Short-term allowances for doubtful debts 137 5.5 (277,650,985,880) (282,261,323,609)
5. Shortage of assets awaiting resolution 139 56 5,723,624,929 5,723,624,929
IV. Inventories 140 5.7 407,645,257,829 411,134,223,761
1. Inventories 141 407,645,257,829 411,134,223,761
V. Other current assets 150 12,349,432,925 12,633,955,569
1. Short-term prepaid expenses 151 5.8 3,107,984,225 3,109,039,791
2. Deductible value added tax 152 8,608,910,396 8,374,960,145
3. Taxes and other receivables from, payables to the 153 5.9 632,538,304 1,149,955,633
State
B- ;ggfj?gf;s g}_gjg 1250+260) 200 100,060,970,671 178,974,891,046
I. Long-term receivables 210 44,494,017,064 44,494,017,064
1. Long-term trade receivables 216 54 44,494,017,064 44,494,017,064
II. Fixed assets 220. 2,525,063,680 2,788,544,109
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 5.12 2,525,063,680 2,788,544,109
- Historical costs 222 67,837,314,399 77,459,476,896
- Accumulated depreciation 223 (65,312,250,719) (74,670,932,787)
2. Intangible fixed assels 227 - -
- Historical costs 228 10,700,000 10,700,000
- Accumulated depreciation 229 (10,700,000) (10,700,000)
III. Investment properties 230 5.10 - .
1. Historical costs 231 55,396,530,173 55,396,530,173
2. Accumulated depreciation 232 (55,396,530,173) (55,396,530,173)
1V. Long-term assets in progress 240 37,969,757,459 37,969,757,459
1. Construction in progress 242 5.11 37,969,757,459 37,969,757,459
V. Long-term investments 250 5.13 14,196,107,029 92,991,693,304
1. Investments in joint ventures and associates 252 9,546,707,029 86,172,579,362
2. Investments in equity of other entities 253 7,886,400,000 11,215,113,942
3. Allowances for long-term investments 254 (3,237,000,000) (4,396,000,000)
VI. Other long-term assets 260 876,025,439 730,879,110
1. Long-term prepaid expenses 261 5.8 876,025,439 730,879,110
TOTALASSRLS 270 890,272,426,760 1,113,112,919,997

(270 = 100+200)




SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Form B 01-DN/HIN

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Tay Ho District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
As at 31" December 2024
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
RESOURCES Code Note VND VND
C- LIABILITIES (300 = 310+330) 300 1,921,769,984,786 2,143,499,315,100
I. Short-term liabilities 310 1,885,947,182,694 1,895,196,663,135
1. Short-term trade payables 311 5.14 254,419,402,443 254,980,001,644
2. Short-term prepayments from customers 312 5.15 82,875,479,764 72,994,558,878
3. Taxes and other payables to government 313 5.9 29.122,839.226 31,241,591,022
budget
4, Payables to employees 314 17,522,327,239 17,422,773,314
5. Short-term accrued expenses 315 5.16 877,690,771,778 940,051,417,007
6. Short-term unearned revenues 318 2,810,725,581 5,539,781,818
7. Other short-term payments 319 5.17 318,951,454,518 259,482,207,530
8. Short-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities 320 5.19 301,939,558,237 312,869,708,014
9.  Short-term provisions 321 5.18 401,091,346 401,091,346
10. Bonus and welfare fund 322 213,532,562 213,532,562
1. Long-term liabilities 330 35,822,802,092 248,302,651,965
1. Long-term trade payables 333 5.16 29,339,344,633 29,339,344,633
2. Other long-term payables 337 5.17 4,679,502,059 4,679,502,059
3. Long-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities 338 5.19 1,803,955,400 1,803,955,400
4,  Long-term provisions 342 5.18 - 212,479,849,873
D- OWNERS’ EQUITY (400 = 410+430) 400 (1,031,497,558,0265 (1,030,386,395,1035
I.  Owners’ equity 410 5.20 (1,031,502,301,026) (1,030,391,138,103)
1. Contributed capital 411 270,000,000,000 270,000,000,000
- Ordinary shares with voting rights 411a 270,000,000,000 270,000,000,000
2. Capital surplus 412 24,126,376,429 24,126,376,429
3. Other capital 414 1,072,018,933 1,072,018,933
4. Treasury shares 415 (390,000,000) (390,000,000)
5.  Development and investment funds 418 26,413,502,573 26,413,502,573
6. Enterprise reorganization assistance fund 419 25,981,000 25,981,000
7. Other equity funds 420 06,158,136,532 6,158,136,532
8. Undistributed profit after tax 421 (1,337,180,063,185) (1,336,244,766,456)
- Undistributed profit after tax brought forward 421a (1,336,268,978,430) (1,265,847,819,897)
_ Undistributed profit after tax for 421 (911,084,755) (70.396.946,559)
the current year

9. Non-controlling Interests 429 (21,728,253,308) (21,552,387,114)
1I. Funding sources and other funds 430 4,743,000 4,743,000
1. Funding sources 432 4,743,000 4,743,000
TOTAL RESOURCES 440 890,272,426,760 1,113,112,919,997

(440 = 300+400)

Preparer Deputy Manager of Finance / /.
and Accounting Department (In chargg ot,)/
— @ [ -‘(
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\\\E;,\.\i_.__’
Nguyen Thi Khanh Hau Le Thi Hong Hanh =

anor 22 May 2025
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Form B 02 - DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Tay Ho District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024
Year 2024 Year 2023
(ITEMS Code Note VND VND
1. Revenues from sales and services rendered 01 6.1 12,007,159,186 8,995,873,211
2. Revenue deductions 02 - =
Net revenues from sales and services rendered
. 10
3 (10 = 01-02) 12,007,159,186 8,995,873,211
4. Costs of goods sold 11 6.2 6,082,268,582 1,503,026,752
Gross revenues from sales and services
5. rendered (20 = 10-11) 20 5,924,890,604 7,492,846,459
6. Financial income 21 6.3 3,636,513,182 2,243,497,555
7. Financial expenses 2 64 100,103,858,728 63,564,820,709
Inwhich: interest expenses 23 56,188,640,271 63,564,820,709
3. Share of profit or loss of associates and joint 24 180,093,44é 5,044,807,298_
ventures
9. Selling expenses 25 - -
10. General administrative expenses 26 6.5 7,276,265,55& 25,504,247,05&
Net profits from operating activities
11. (30 = 20+(21-22)424-(25+26)} 30 (97,638,627,050) (74,287,916,451)
12. Other income 31 6.6 102,441,212,658 5,269,299,899
13. Other expenses 32 66 5,889,536,557 1,318,655,059
14. Other profits (40 =31-32) 40 96,551,676,101 3,950,644,840
Total net profit before tax
15. (50 = 30-+40+45) 50 (1,086,950,949) (70,337,271,611)
16. Current corporate income tax expenses 51 - 42,308,611
17. Deferred corporate income tax expenses 52 - -
Profits after corporate income tax
18. (60 = 50-51-52) 60 (1,086,950,949) (70,379,580,222)
Profit after tax attributable to owners
19, Lo ATer AR 61 (911,084,755) (70,396,946,559)
of the parent
20. 'Proﬁt after tax attributable to non-controlling 2 (175,866,194; 17,366,33’;
interests
21. Basic earnings per share 70 6.7 (33.8) (2,611.1)

Preparer

e

/

Nguyen Thi Khanh Hau

Le Thi Hong Hanh

9

Deputy Manager of Finance
1d Accounting Department (In charge

WZ May 2025
neral Director

Dang Minh Quang
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK. CORPORATION

No.

70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Tay Ho District, Hanoi

Form B 03 — DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

ITEM

Net cash flows from operating activities

Profit before fax

Adjustments for:

- Depreciation of fixed assets and investment properties
- Provisions

- Gains (losses) on investing activities

- Interest expenses

- Other adjustments

Operafing profit before changes in working capital
- Increase (decrease) in receivables

- Increase (decrease) in inventories

- Increase (decrease) in payables

- Increase (decrease) in prepaid expenses

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal or transfer of fixed assets and

other long-term assets
Proceeds from equity investment in other entities

Proceeds from interests, dividends and distributed profits

Net cash flows from investing acfivifies
Cash flows from financial activities
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of principal

Net cash flows from financial activities
Net cash flows during the period

(50 = 20+30+40)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
(70 = 50+60)

Year 2024 Year 2023

CodeNote VND VND
01 (1,086,950,949) (70,337,271,611)
02 94,114,480 222,232,408
03 (5,769,337,729) 17,023,274,038
05 (25,224,924,331) (2,243,497,555)
06 56,188,640,271 63,564,820,709
07 (6,700,000,000) -
08 17,501,541,742 8,229,557,989
09 85,625,832,860 (6,939,821,061)
10 3,488,965,932 (6,439,967,259)
11 (266,842,666,833) 139,6006,625,267
12 (144,090,763) 21,321,936
20 (160,370,417,062) 134,477,716,872
22 247,138,048 359,000,000
26 23,871,862,164 -
27 1,105,924,119 1,098,582,277
30 25,224,924,331 1,457,582,277
33 - 1,679,000,000
34 (3,929,000,000) -
40 (3,929,000,000) 1,679,000,000
50 (139,074,492,731) 137,614,299,149
60 142,269,240,338 4,654,941,189
70 5.1 3,194,747,607 142,269,240,338

Hanoi, 22 May 2025
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Preparer Deputy Manager of Finance _____General Director
and Accounting Department (In charge %}ff;‘,j]‘[;'g T 0
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" Dang Minh Quang

Nguyen Thi Khanh Hau Le Thi Hong Hanh




SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Form B 09 - DN/HN

No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Tay Ho District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

1.1.

1.2.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Structure of ownership

Songhong Joint Stock Corporation is the successor of a state-owned enterprise established under Decision
No. 2410/QD-BXD dated December 30, 2005 and Decision No. 1219/QB-BXD dated August 25, 2006
issued by the Minister of Construction, based on the reorganization of Song Hong Construction
Corporation pursuant to Business Registration Certificate No. 110561 issued by the Department of
Planning and Investment of Phu Tho Province. The Corporation was granted the Enterprise Registration

Certificate No. 2600104283 by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment for the first time on June
2, 2010, and changed for the 8th time on October 15, 2024.

Abbreviated name: Songhong Corp.

The Corporation’s Charter capital under the Certificate of Business Registration number 2600104283
changed for the 8th time on October 15, 2024 is VND 270,000,000,000 (In Word: Two hundred seventy
billion Vietnamese Dong), divided into 27,000,000 shares with a par value of VND 10,000 per share.

The Corporation’s stock is currently listed on the UpCOM Stock Exchange with stock code: SHG.

The Corporation’s shares are subject to trading restrictions on the UpCOM trading system pursuant to
Decision No. 1133/QD-SGDHN dated October 21, 2024, issued by the Hanoi Stock Exchange.

The Corporation’s registered office is located at: No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward, Tay Ho District, Hanoi.
The total number of the Corporation’s employees as at 31/12/2024 is 26 (as at 31/12/2023 is 29).

Operating industries and principal activities
* Construction of other civil engineering works;

Details: Execution of civil, industrial, fransportation, irrigation, bridges, hydropower, telecommunication,
foundation, urban and industrial infrastructure engineering works; construction of power transmission lines and
transformer stations; offshore platform works, river ports, and seaports; installation of medical water systems,
clean gas systems, laboratory equipment, and environmental treatiment systems in healthcare facilities.

» Architectural and related engineering consultancy activities;

» Technical testing and analysis;

» Other professional, scientific, and technological activities not elsewhere classified;
* Real eslate business, including ownership, use rights, or leased assets;

» Installation of electrical systems;

« Installation of other construction systems;

» Installation of water supply, drainage, heating, and air conditioning systems;
» Mechanical processing; metal treatment and coating;

* Wholesale of metals and metal ores;

» Installation of industrial machinery and equipment;

» General wholesale trade;

» Manufacture of electric wires, cables, and other electronic conductors;

* Rental of machinery, equipment, and other tangible goods;

* Wholesale of machinery, equipment, and spare parts;

The principal activities of the Corporation during the year: Leasing of premises and offices, and
construction of civil engineering works.
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Form B 09 - DN/HN
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward, Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
Tay Ho District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.3. Normal operating cycle

The Corporation’s normal operating cycle is 12 months.

1.4. Statement of information comparability on the Consolidated financial statements

The Board of General Directors ensures to follow all the requirements of the Vietnamese Accounting
Standards and Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, which were issued together with the
Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 and Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC on
amending and supplementing a number of articles of Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated December
22, 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance. Therefore, the information and figures presented in the
Consolidated financial statements are comparable.
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Form B 09 - DN/HN

No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Tay Ho District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

2.

FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY
Fiscal year

The Corporation’s fiscal year applicable for the preparation of its Consolidated financial statements
starts on 1% January and ends on 31* December of solar year.

Accounting currency

The accompanying Consolidated financial statements are expressed in Vietnam Dong (VND).
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM

Accounting System

The Corporation applied to Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System promulgated under Circular
No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance and Circular No.
53/2016/TT- BTC dated March 21, 2016 amending and supplementing a number of articles of Circular
200/2014/TT- BTC dated December 22, 2014.

Statements for the compliance with Accounting Standards and System

The Board of General Directors ensures to follow all the requirements of the Vietnamese Accounting
Standards and Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, which were issued to guide the preparation
and presentation of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Accounting Method applied

The Corporation applies the journal voucher accounting form and maintains accounting records using
computerized systems.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation of the Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation are prepared in accordance with Circular
202/2014/TT-BTC dated December 22, 2014 of the Ministry of Finance on Guidance on methods of
preparing and presenting consolidated financial statements, specifically:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in Vietnamese Dong (VND), on
the historical cost basis, and in compliance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Enterprise  Accounting System, and relevant legal regulations relating to the preparation and
presentation of consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by consolidating the separate financial
statements of the Corporation and the financial statements of subsidiaries controlled by the
Corporation as of December 31 each year. Control is deemed to exist when the Corporation has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of the investees so as to obtain benefits from their
activities. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared for the financial
year ended December 31, 2024.

As at the date of closing the books for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the
Corporation had not obtained the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024 of Song
Hong Da Nang Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary of the Corporation, as the company has ceased
operations and no longer has management or accounting personnel. The data used for consolidation
was based on the unaudited financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2016.

The results of operations of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal,
respectively.

Where necessary, the financial statements of subsidiaries are adjusted to ensure that accounting
policies applied are consistent with those adopted by the Corporation and other subsidiaries.
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Form B 09 — DN/HN

No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Tay Ho District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of preparation of the Consolidated financial statements (Confinued)

All intra-group transactions and balances between the Corporation and subsidiaries and among
subsidiaries themselves have been eliminated in the consolidation process.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet under equity. Non-
controlling interests include the value of the interests held by minority sharcholders at the date of
initial business combination and their share of changes in the total equity of the subsidiary since the
date of acquisition. Losses incurred by subsidiaries are allocated to non-controlling interests in
proportion to their ownership, even if such allocation results in a deficit balance of non-controlling
interests in the net assets of the subsidiary.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not reflect the consolidated financial position,
consolidated results of operations, or consolidated cash flows in accordance with accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in countries other than Vietnam.

Business Combination

The assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are recognized at their fair values as at
the acquisition date. Any excess of the acquisition cost over the total fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. Any shortfall of the acquisition cost below the total fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognized in the consolidated income statement for the
period in which the acquisition occurs.

The non-controlling interests at the acquisition date are determined based on the proportionate share of
the fair value of the recognized assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities.

Going concern assumption

As at December 31, 2024, the Corporation’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by VND
1,095.74 billion. For the financial year then ended, the Corporation incurred a consolidated net loss of
VND 1.09 billion. As at the same date, the Corporation had an accumulated consolidated loss of VND
1,337.18 billion and a negative equity balance of VND 1,031.5 billion. The Corporation's operation
continuance depends on its recovery of receivables, improving the efficiency of leasing operations,
and the financial support from shareholders.

The Board of Management and the Board of General Directors continuously evaluate and decisively
implement plans to maximize the Corporation’s ability to operate as a going concern. The specific
measures undertaken include:

- Efforts to recover receivables;

- Optimizing available resources through reducing workspace, repairing and renovating offices, and
increasing revenue from leasing office space.

The Board of General Directors believes that the accompanying Consolidated financial statements
prepared on a going concern basis are appropriate.

Accounting estimates

The preparation of the Consolidated financial statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards requires the Board of General Directors to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of liabilities, assets and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the Consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
fiscal year. Actual results may differ from those estimates and assumptions.
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Form B 09 — DN/HN

No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Tay Ho District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINULED)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand, bank deposits.

Cash and bank deposits are recognized based on the actual cash inflows and outflows.
Financial investments

Held to maturity investiments

Held to maturity investments includes: term bank deposits with original maturities of more than 3
months.

Held-to-maturity investments are stated at cost less allowance for bad debts. Allowance for bad debts
of held-to-maturity investments is made in conformity with current accounting regulations.

Tnvestmenis in associates and other investmenis

Investments in joint ventures and associates over which the Corporation has significant influence are
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

Other investments: are recorded at cost, including purchase price plus directly attributable acquisition
costs. After the initial recognition, these investments are measured at cost less allowance for
diminution in value of investments.

Allowance for loss of investments

Allowance for losses of investments in subsidiaries, conftributions to joint ventures, investments in
associates and investments in equity instruments of other entities is made when there is apparent
evidence for impairment in value of the investments as at the balance sheet date.

Receivables

The receivables comprise the customer receivables and other receivables. Receivables are recognized
at the carrying amounts less allowances for doubtful debts.

Allowance for doubtful debts is assessed and made for overdue receivables that arve difficult to be
collected, or the debtor is unable to pay due to dissolution, bankruptcy or similar difficulties.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost. Where the cost of inventories is higher than their net realizable value,
inventories are written down to net realizable value. The cost of inventories comprises direct materials,
direct labor, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads, if any, incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is determined based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
including marketing, selling, and distribution expenses. Inventories are accounted for using the
perpetual method and valued using the weighted average method.

Allowance for impairment of inventories is made when there is reliable evidence of impairment of the
net realizable value compared to the history cost of inventories.
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Form B 09 — DN/HN

No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Tay Ho District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Tangible fixed assets and Depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at history cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical costs of
tangible fixed assets include all the expenses paid by the Corporation to bring the asset to its working
condition for its intended use.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Details

are as follows:
Useful life

(Year)
10-15

03-08
06-10
03-08

Buildings, structures
Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

Office equipment

When a tangible fixed asset is sold or disposed, its historical cost and accumulated depreciation are
written off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposal is included in the income or the expenses
during the year.

Intangible fixed assets and Amortization

The Corporation’s intangible fixed assets comprise computer software programs, which are stated at cost
less accumulated amortization.

The cost of intangible fixed assets includes all expenses incurred by the Corporation to acquire the assets
and bring them to their condition and location necessary for their intended use.

Intangible fixed assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. As of the
reporting date, the intangible fixed assets have been fully amortized.

Investment properties

The Corporation’s investment properties comprise the value of commercial areas on the 1st floor,
mezzanine, office space, and basement areas at the I1, 12, I3 high-rise residential projects and the
Thanh Cong 2 office-for-lease project. Currently, the Corporation has leased out these properties for
the entire duration of the land use rights and has recognized revenue and cost of sales from these
transactions, although the final settlement of the allocated property value from these projects between
the parties has not yet been completed.

The historical cost of investment property includes all expenses (cash and cash equivalents) paid by
the Corporation, or the fair value of other amount exchanged to acquire the investment property by the
time of purchase or construction of the investment property.

Cost related to investment property incurred after initial recognition must be recognized as Cost for
Production and Business in the year, unless the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of investment property beyond its
originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditure is capitalized as an additional cost of
investment property.

The Corporation’s investment properties are fully depreciated to cost of sales during the period, as the
Corporation has recognized revenue in full for the entire amount of advance payments received from the
lease of these investment properties.

Liquidation: Gains and losses from disposal of investment property are measured by the difference
between net proceeds from disposal and the remaining amount of the investment property and are
recognized as income or expense in the Income Statement.
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No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Tay Ho District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses comprise actual expenses arising but relevant to financial performance in several
accounting periods. The Corporation’s prepaid expenses includes:

Tools and supplies

Tools and supplies are recorded to expenses and depreciated to on a straight-line basis with useful life
of not exceeding 3 years.

Goodwill
The cost of land lot advantages is allocated on a straight-line basis over a period of 10 years.
Construction in progress

Construction in progress reflects the Properties in progress for produiction, leasing, administrative purposes,
or for any other purposes are recognized at the historical cost. This cost includes relevant service fees,
interest fees in accordance with the Corporation’s accounting policies. Depreciation of these assets is the
same as the other assets, commencing from these assets are ready for their intended use.

Payables

The account payables are monitored in details by payable terms, payable parties, original currency and
other factors depending on the Corporation’s management requirement.

The account payables include payables as trade payables, loans payable and other payables which are
determined almost certainly about the recorded value and term, which is not carried less than amount
to be paid. They are classified as follows:

e Trade payables: reflect payables of commercial nature arising from the purchase of goods, services, or
assets, payables for import through trustees of which the sellers (who are independent entities, including
amounts payable between the parent company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates).

e Other payables reflect payables of non-commercial nature and irrelevant to purchase, sales of goods
or provisions of services.

Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses are those already recorded in operating expenses in the period/year but not actually
paid to ensure that when these expenses actually occur, they will not have a significant influence on
operating expenses based on matching principle between income and expenses.

The Corporation recognizes accrued expenses as follows:

¢ Accrued Interest Expense: Accrued based on the bank’s interest notice up to the date of
preparation of the Consolidated financial statements.

* Cost of Goods Sold: Accrued based on the revenue ratio derived from the revenue recognized upon
acceptance with the project owner.

Provisions (for payables)

The recognized amount of a provision for payables is the best estimate of the amount that will be
required to settle the present obligation as at the fiscal year end date or balance sheet date.

Only expenses related to the provision for payables made initially will be offset by such provision.
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Form B 09 — DN/HN

No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Tay Ho District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Loans and finance lease liabilities

Loans and finance lease liabilities include loans, excluding loans in the form of bonds or preference
shares with terms that the issuer is required to repurchase at a certain point in the future.

The Corporation monitors loan amounts and financial liabilities in details by each type and classifies
them into short-term and long-term according to repayment term.

Recognition and capitalization of Borrowing costs

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Income statement when incurring, except for the
borrowing cost capitalized under Vietnamese Accounting Standards “Borrowing cost”.

Owners’ equity
Capital is recorded according to the actual amounts invested by shareholders.

Share Premium is recognized based on the difference, whether positive or negative, between the actual
issuance price and the par value of shares during the initial public offering, additional share issuances,
or reissuance of treasury shares.

Retained Earnings are determined based on the profit after corporate income tax and the appropriation

of profit or loss settlement by the Corporation.

Profit After Tax of the Corporation is distributed as dividends to shareholders upon approval by the
General Meeting of Shareholders at the Corporation’s Annual General Meeting and after allocations to
various funds in accordance with the Corporation’s Charter.

Equity Funds are appropriated in accordance with the provisions of the Corporation’s Charter.
Revenue and other income
Revenue from services

Revenue from services is recognized when the outcome of that transaction can be reliably determined.

Where a transaction involving the rendering of services is attributable to several periods, revenue is

recognized in the year by reference to the percentage of completion of the transaction at the
consolidated balance sheet date of that period. The outcome of a transaction can be measured reliably
when all four (4) following conditions are satisfied:

(a) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(b) Itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Corporation;

(c) Identify the completed work as at the Consolidated balance sheet date; and

(d) Determine the costs incurred for the transaction as well as the cost to complete the transaction to
provide that service.
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Form B 09 - DN/HN

No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Tay Ho District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue of construction '
Revenues of construction are reliably recognized in the following cases:

» For construction contracts stipulating that the contractor is paid according to the planned schedule,
the revenue and expenses related to the contract are recognized in equivalent proportion to the
completed work determined by the Corporation as at the balance sheet date,

¢ For construction contracts stipulating that the contractor is paid according to the value of the
volume performed, the revenue and expenses related to the contract are recognized in equivalent
proportion to the completed work confirmed by the customer and reflected on the issued invoice

Increases and decreases in construction volume, compensation and other revenues are recognized as
revenue only when agreed with the customer,

Revenues of construction are not recognized in the following cases:
» Revenue is recognized in equivalent proportion to contract costs which is probable to be paid.
» The contract costs are recognized to expenses only when they actually incur.

The difference between the total accumulated revenue of the recognized construction contract and the
accumulated amount recorded on the payment invoice according to the planned progress of the
contract is recorded as a receivable or payable amount according to the planned progress of
construction contracts.

Revenue from interest income, dividends and profits received and other income

The revenue is recognized when the Corporation can obtain economic benefits from the above
activities and when it is reliably measured.

Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold or services rendered including the cost of service, production cost of construction
products sold during the period is recorded corresponding to revenue of the period. For cost which is
over the normal level of inventories is recorded directly into the cost of goods sold.

Financial expenses

Financial expenses reflect expenses incurred during the period, which mainly include borrowing costs,
provision for loss of investments in other entities.

Current corporate income tax expense and other tax expense

Corporate income tax expenses (or corporate income tax income): is total current and deferred income
tax expenses (or total current and deferred tax) in determining profit or loss of a period.

Current income tax expenses: are corporate income tax payable calculated on taxable profit during the
year and current corporate income tax rate. Current income tax is calculated on taxable income and
applicable tax rate during the tax period. Difference between taxable income and accounting profit is
from adjustment of differences between accounting profit and taxable income in accordance with
current tax policies.

The Corporation has an obligation to pay corporate income tax at the rate of 20% on taxable profits.

The determination of the Corporation's income tax is based on current tax regulations. However, these
regulations change from time to time and the final determination of corporate income tax depends on the
examination results of the competent tax authorities.

Other Taxes are applied in accordance with the prevailing tax laws and regulations of Vietnam.
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Tay Ho District, Hanoi

Form B 09 — DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/T1-BTC

dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit (loss) after tax for the year attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Corporation by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.
Related parties
A party is considered a related party of the Corporation in case that party is able to control the
Corporation or to cause material effects on the financial decisions as well as the operations of the
Corporation. A party is also considered a related party of the Corporation in case that party is under the
same control or is subject to the same material effects.
When considering the relationship of related parties, the nature of relationship is focused more than its
legal form.
Segment reporting
A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Corporation that is engaged in
manufacturing or providing products or related services (by business segment) or in providing
products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical area) which is subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of other segments. The Board of General Directors
confirms that the Corporation has only one business segment and operates in a single geographical
area, which is Vietnam. Therefore, segment reporting is not prepared.
5. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO ITEMS DISCLOSED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEET
5.1 Cash and cash equivalents
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VYND
Cash 2,857,832,351 2,955,693,618
Bank deposits 336,915,256 139,313,546,720
Total 3,194,747,607 142,269,240,338
5.2  Receivables from customers
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Short-term receivables from customers 165,172,706,906 170,020,071,780
Harfoi Urban Transport Pcvelopment Investment 14,740,131,074 14,740,131,074
Project Management Unit
Vietnam National Textile and Garment Group 7,072,391,072 7,072,391,072
BQP - Dong Do Property Investment Joint Stock Company 6,190,508,339 6,190,508,339
Others 137,169,676,421 142,017,041,295
Total 165,172,706,906 170,020,071,780
Receivables from related parties 24,976,031,505 24,976,031,505

Details in Note 7.1
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Tay Ho District, Hanoi

Form B 09 - DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/T1T-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

5.3 Repayments to suppliers

Short-term repayments to suppliers
Song Hong Sai Gon Joint Stock Company

Song Hong 24 Construction Joint Stock Company

Others

Total

Repayments fo related parties

Details in Note 7.1

5.4 Other receivables

Short-term

Advances

Deposits

Receivables from
privatization

Song Hong 6 Joint Stock
Company

Others

Long-term

Deposits

Project Management Board
of Thai Ha (capital
contributions to the project
and other receivables)

Others

Total

Other receivables from
related parties
Details in Note 7.1

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

279,707,127,474 280,523,604,747

126,390,086,131 126,390,086,131

43,574,509,655 43,574,509,655

109,742,531,688 110,559,008,961

279,707,127,474 280,523,604,747

146,267,359,886 146,267,359,886
Unit: VND

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

Book value Allowances Book value Allowances
193,669,544,299 (142,440,138,204)  193,694,631,436 (143,037,161,172)
29,911,913,754 (12,979,916,849) 30,506,149,470 (13,576,939,817)
209,188,415 - 209,188,415 -

5,115,072,141

35,470,547,873
122,962,822,116

44,494,017,064
928,000,000

31,874,039,685

11,691,977,379

(4,807,785,060)
(35,470,547,876)
(89,181,888,419)

5,115,072,141

35,470,547,873
122,393,673,537

44,494,017,064
928,000,000

31,874,039,685

11,691,977,379

(4,807,785,060)
(35,470,547,876)
(89,181,888,419)

238,163,561,363

(142,440,138,204)

238,188,648,500

(143,037,161,172)

78,378,767,884
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Tay Ho District, Hanoi

Form B 09 — DN/HN

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/1TT-BTC

dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

5.5 Bad debts

Unit: VND
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Recoverable Recoverable
Original value amount Original value amount
Total value of receivables,
loans that are overdue or not 1 ) 39 99, 119,541,954,112  401,966,919,481  119,705,595,872

pass due but hardly

recoverable

The Corporation determines the recoverable amount of bad debts as the original carrying amount of the
receivables less the short-term allowance for doubtful debts related to these counterparties.

Amount
Company name VYND
Song Hong Joint Stock Corporation 361,646,976,604
Song Hong One Member Limited Liability Company — Mechanization and Construction 7,068,841,543
Song Hong An Duong One Member Limited Liability Company 5,802,694,676

Song Hong Thang Long Joint Stock Company
Song Hong Da Nang Joint Stock Company

18,544,521,691
4,129,905,478

Total 397,192,939,992
5.6 Shortage of assets awaiting resolution
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Cash 1,799,027,494 1,799,027,494
Inventories 3,159,495,402 3,159,495,402
Fixed assets 499,172,496 499,172,496
Others 265,929,537 265,929,537
Total 5,723,624,929 5,723,624,929
5.7 Inventories
Unit: VND
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Original value Allowances Original value Allowances
Raw materials 18,944,486 - 18,944,486 -
Tools and supplies 154,449,140 - 154,449,140 =
Work in progress 383,134,793,933 - 386,623,759,865 -
-V ’
amg.Ang ¢ Tz 166,716,096,300 - 166,716,096,300 a
Power Plant Project
- Others 216,418,697,633 - 219,907,663,565 -
Real estate inventories (i) 24,337,070,270 - 24,337,070,270 -
Total 407,645,257,829 - 411,134,223,761 -

(i) The land lot located in the Tay Ho villa area has been transferred. The proceeds from the sale have been
recorded under the item "Prepayments from customers" in the Consolidated Financial Statements, amounting
to VND 24,655,500,000.
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Form B 09 - DN/HN

Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

5.8 Prepaid expenses

Short-term

Prepaid materials, tools and supplies expenses

Long-term

Prepaid materials, tools and supplies expenses

Advantage related to the land lot at Lao Cai Branch

Others

Total

Payables

VAT

Corporate income tax
Personal income tax

Land tax, Land rental charges
Others

Fee, charges and other
payables

Receivables

VAT

Corporate income tax

Land tax, Land rental charges
Fee, charges and other

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

3,107,984,225 3,109,039,791

3,107,984,225 3,109,039,791

876,025,439 730,879,110

76,484,885 7,919,353

222,475,342 222,475,342

577,065,212 500,484,415

3,984,009,664 3,839,918,901

5.9 Taxes and other receivables, payables to the government budget

Unit: VND

01/01/2024 Additions Paid 31/12/2024
31,241,591,022 5,569,467,973 7,688,219,769 29,122,839,226
20,544,805,470 1,863,355,754 1,847,224,922 20,560,936,302
339,335,899 & - 339,335,899
441,302,052 23,543,998 40,412,633 424,433,417
6,338,218,585 3,674,568,221 5,792,582,214 4,220,204,592
441,272,844 8,000,000 8,000,000 441,272,844
3,136,656,172 - - 3,136,656,172
01/01/2024 Additions Paid 31/12/2024
1,149,955,633 90,909,091 608,326,420 632,538,304
440,272,844 - - 440,272,844
92,821,146 90,909,091 - 183,730,237
608,326,420 - 608,326,420 =
8,535,223 - - 8,535,223

payables
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No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward, Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Tay Ho District, Ianoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

5.10 Investment properties

01/01/2024 Increase Decrease 31/12/2024
Items VND VND VND VND
Investment property for lease
History cost 55,396,530,173 - - 55,396,530,173
- Buildings 55,396,530,173 : - - 55,396,530,173
Accumulated depreciation 55,396,530,173 . - - 55,396,530,173
- Buildings 55,396,530,173 = - 55,396,530,173
Net book value - - - -
- Buildings - - - -

Investment properties represent the value of the commercial areas on the ground floor and mezzanine floor,
office areas, and basement areas at the high-rise residential projects I1, 12, I3, and the Thanh Cong 2 office-
for-lease project. Currently, the Corporation has leased out these properties for the entire remaining land use
term of the respective projects and has recognized revenue and cost of sales from these transactions, although
the project finalization procedures have not yet been completed.

In accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 05 — Investment Property, the fair value of
investment properties as at 31 December 2024 is required to be disclosed. However, the the Corporation does
not have sufficient information to determine the fair value of these assets as at the date of preparation of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

5.11 Construction in progress

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

Royal Song Hong Hotel (i) 35,602,635,193 35,602,635,193
Linh Nam Project 502,947,394 502,947,394
Others ' _ 1,864,174,872 1,864,174,872
Total 37,969,757,459 37,969,757,459

(i) The Royal Song Hong Hotel Project was implemented under Decision No. 108/QD-HDQT-TCT dated 03
April 2008 of the Board of Management of Song Hong Joint Stock Corporation , with a total investment
capital of VND 36.7 billion. Official Letter No. 2240/BXD-KHTC dated 20 September 2017 issued by
the Ministry of Construction approved, in principle, the Corporation’s proposal to seek a partner for the
transfer of the project. Pursuant to Resolution No. 23/NQ-HDQT dated 28 February 2024 approving the
debt settlement and judgment enforcement plan of the Corporation, and based on the meeting minutes
between the Corporation and Trieu Chau One Member Limited Liability Company dated 01 March 2024,
both parties agreed to settle the Corporation’s obligations to Trieu Chau Company by transferring/selling
the Royal Song Hong Hotel Project (including the assets attached to land and land use rights). The value
to be offset against the obligation is VND 10,000,000,000. Currently, the Corporation is carrying out the
necessary procedures to transfer/sell the project to the individual or legal entity designated by Trieu Chau
One Member Limited Liability Company.

25




e

9T

(656°058°889°SS CINA ETOT/TT/L€ T S°) TOH'§SB°676°9% ANA ST ¥TOT/TI/I € 78 SE OSn U [[S Inq PajeIondap A[[Ng SIe GOIM SIOSSe poxiy 9[qiSue) J0 1509 AIONSIH

%m”mwo”mﬂmﬂn = = 966°TL8"69T ¥89°061°SST'T PZOT/TI/IE ¥e SV
601vPS88LT 2 LTH LTTHEL 966°7L8'69T T69'SHH +8ET $T0Z/T0/10 1€ SV
- - ANTVA MOO0d LAN
6IL0ST'TIE SY SLE'LEE'B6L 00I°I6T°LS6°6 LS8 STOVOV Y LSSV TST'TT PT0T/TI/IE ¥ SV
6Ly TS6°T89°S g 875°gE1°5¢E J I1S6°E18°LY9°S $OSBAIORP JAYI0
L6S‘T86708°E €LT°ESS 1TT 8LLYLYEIFE OFSHS6°691 - [esodsiq
9L0°S€6°L8Y 6 €LT'ESS1ZT 90€°CT98HF’S IS PS6 69T IS6°CI8LY9‘S 3seaIR(q
8TSBEISE 875 gETCE SOSBAIOUI IO
087 FI1%6 - - - 08F FI16 uoneroardag
800°€SZ°6TT - = - 800°€ST6ZI 3SBAIIU]
L8L'TE6 0L YL 859°0S6°610°T 907 708°S0F°CT €CH'0L6°CLS T 00€°LOT TLY LY $T0T/T0/10 3¢ SV
NOLLVIDTIdAd AALVINNNADOV
66€VIELES LY SLELGE'S6L 00T°‘T6I°LS6'6 £88°888'CLITH THO°LES LOFFT PTOT/TI/IE ¥E SV
1S6°C18°LY9°S - - - 1S6°C18°LY9°S $9SBAI09P 1010
IS SYE VL E ELT €SS ITT LTL OV T8S°E 9PS¥S6°691 5 e
L6V'T9T‘T79°% ELT'ESSTTT LTL'0V8'T8S S 9¥S‘PS6°691 IS6'€I8 LIS 258
- - - - = aseaIdUT
968°9L¥ 65 LL 879°0S6°6T0°T LTS IE0°0PS ET 6TF Y8 cr8 T 766°059°€S0°02 $Z0T/10/10 3& SV
LSOO AYOLSIH

[e10L, jusurdmba a3 sugawr uoneiodsueay, judwdinba $2.IN30N.I1S pUE

‘AraunpoeIAl ssurpymg
aNA -74p]

S}asse paxyy I[qIsue], ZTI'S

$707 19quI993( [ € POpUL Jeak 3} J0

(QIANILNOD) SINTNALY.LS TYIONVNIA AILVAITOSNOD FHL OL SALON

9uUTUL] JO AUSIUIA 81 JO $107/T1/TT P3YeP OL1E-LL/107/20T “ON JE[MIL0) Jopun panss]

NH/NA - 60 § wtog

ToueH ‘oIS OH A& ‘plepp nUJ Us X 19218 Suon( uy ‘0L "ON
NOILVIOJIOD AD0LS INIOL ONOHONOS



e \PCa—F-

LE

Junowre SUIAIIES SU} WOy JOJIP ABUW SN[BA JIeJ SY], "SPOYIeUI UOHEN[EA SUIST SJUSIISSAUT PSISI[UN JO SN[BA Jre] oY) SUIUIuLIop
uo soueping oyroads ou st 2191y ‘sprepuE)g SUNUNOCOY SSOWBUIANA PUE WAISAS SUTUNOSOY 9SOUIBUIAIA JUSLINO 3] Jopun pue ‘sorueduiod paIsI[un oIe $9)BIo0sSY (4)

UOTMA S 1T ANA JO d0[eA JUSUNSIAUL U [iIM D[ 0 AB], SUOH Suog ‘OS[ Suninsuo) uononnsuoy) SUoH Suog ‘OHS[ JUSUNSIAU] Spel] PUE UOIONISUOD)

OUFel] IousH DS Sreisy [edy Suoy Suog rouey ‘(Suoy Suog ovonspy) JS[ § Suoy Suog “Igr uononysuo) pue podxg-podwy Suoy Suog ‘Ogr 9¢ Suoy Juos ‘OSr
[9318 SuoH Suog :sarueduro)) 93er00ssy SUIMO[0) 3 10 $707 ‘1€ Ioquiada( SUIpuS I8ak [BOSY A1) 0] SJUSWIAE]S [BIOURUL] SU} PIOS[[0d 194 j0u sey uonerodion syl
"04(0 3Ie [edes JuaUNSIAUI JO J9JSUBRT)

913 Joye sonel ST SunoA pue dIysisumo sy, “uonesodIo)) ¥ooig jutof SUoH Suog Jo JuswaSEuTA JO pIeog oy} Jo SZOT 1snSny 50 pa1ep LOAH-ON/I+ "ON Uonn[ossy
i douepIoooe wr Auedwo) yo03§ Juror wnrurwny Suoy Suog ur sareys 00000 pue Auedwo)) 001§ 1wor uononysuo) Suoy Suog ur sareys [ JO Jaysuel] (1)
"%0 s1e seruedwios sA0qe oy} Ul [e3Ided JUSUISSAUL JO IJSUR) SY) 191J& SOIjRl spystr Sunoa pue diysioumo 2y 1, “uonerodio)) 003§ juror Suoy Suog Jo jusweSeuey

JO pIeog a1 3O pZ0T Atenue[ 67 pelep LOAH-ON/OT "ON UONN[OSSY Yiim 9ouep1oooe up Auedwo)) Yo01§ JUIOL JUSUNSAAU] 9)ElSE [eoy SUoK Suog ur sareys 6OE9s1
pue ‘Auedwod 001§ Jurof JusunsaAu] pue AZojouyds ], usAnSN 0By I saeys (00°0< ‘Auedwor) 3003 1UIOf UCISY [euUa)) SUOH JuoS ur sareys ()00°0 1L Jo Joysuel], (11)
"%0 dJe [erdes JUSUISIAUL JO J9JSURD) ST} Joye Sonel s)ySit Sunoa pue diysioumo oy "uoneiodio) yoois juror Suoy Suog Jo juswaeuey

JO preog a1} Jo $Z0T Areniqey 87 pe1ep LOAH-ON/ET "ON UOHN[OSaY UM 95UBpioooe ur Auedwor) 001§ JuIo AS1oug Suoy Suog ur sareys 778 69 ¢ Jo Joysuel] (1)

LEG601H'686°S

000°000°001°L

(1) Auedwo) 30035 Juror UOISHY Jenus) Suol Suog

960°6L6°91C°1 000°000°000°T 960°6L6°91T°1 000°000°000°T Auedwo)) 003§ jutof o Az ], Suoy Suog
" 0£8°850°5€0°T1 - 0£8°8S0°CE0°T 1 Auedwio)) ¥001§ JUIOr UONONNSUOY) ON SUOH Suog
S89°TLLYVE 89Z°189°%9¢ S89°TLLYYSE 89T°189°49¢ OSr Sunsuo) uononysuo) Suoy Suog

[ - R G S 1 T Auedwory 2018 jutor Suiper],
[L80T6'VLE Y 000°000°00079 [L80T6VLE Y 000°000°000°9

L18°820°6¥6°C
T8 PSS OIS 0L

000°000°00Z°C
000°0ZZ°86+°9¢
000000000

L18°8T0°616°T

000°000°00Z°C

000°000°000

PUB JUSUWNSIAU] UOIONIISU0)) uoljeliodsuel ], I0UBH
Auedwo) 001§ jurof A2, yuig Suoy Fuog
Aueduio) o031 1utor 21BISH [eey Suol Suog 1ouey
(1) Auedwo)) o031 1uI0 ASI0Uy SUOL Suog

(Suoy Suog 020119]A]) DS[ 8§ SuoH Suog

. 87 POV TTOS 9¥H°€60°081 8" YOV TTOS Aueduro) 003§ jutof uop reg SUOH SU0S
PI1°T16°08Y 000°000°0T°S vI1T16°08Y 000°000°0ST°S OS[ uononnsuoy) pue wodxy jodwy Suoy Suog
- 000°000°0SL°6 - 000°000°0SL‘6 Auedwo) 30018 Juiof 9¢ SuoH Suog
- 000°000°000°Z01 . 000°000°000°Z01 Aueduro) 001§ Julof [921g SUOH Fuog
(+) T9E°6LS TLI98 085°79€07Z°061 () 6T0°LOL9¥S6 08S‘FFI°TTI‘OPT $93BI20SSE PUE $2INJU2A Julof (B
anjeA JieJ POYIRIAl by 2y  onjea [pwISLIQ anjea ey POYIRIAl A3Inby 2Y1 anjeA [BUISLIO
JIspun uonenjeA , Japun uonen[eA
vZ0T/10/T0 yT0T/TI/IE
aNA 7]

SIUQUIISIAUI ULII-3UOT €I°S

$T07 12qU203(] [ € POPUL Jeak 2y} 1o

(QANNILINOD) SINFWALV.LS TVIONVNIA CLLVAITOSNOD THL OL STLON

SduBUL] JO ANSIUIA 911 JO $10T/21/2T POYEP O.LE-LL/F10Z/20T “ON B[O Jopun panss]
NH/NA - 60 & wtog

IOUBH “0LISI(] OH AB] ‘Pl NUJ U9 X “19ang Suon( uy ‘0L 'ON

NOILVIOJIOD JD0LS INIOL ONOHINOS



(000°000°969°1)

(000°000°00L°T)

(000°000°000°T)

"JUNOWe SUIALIes sy} WOIJ ISJJIp ABW Sn[BA JIe] o] "SPOUIOUWI UONEN[BA TUISN SJUSUISIAUT PIISI[UN JO ON[BA JIE] S} SUIUIULISISP U0 SouBpIng
. I I I rar I
ol109ds ou st a1a( SPIEpUEB)S SUNUNOIOY 9SOWEUIDI A PUR WaISAS SUNUNOIY 9SIWRUID A JUSLIND I} IOPUn pue ‘sa1ueduIos PajSI[UN 218 SJUSUNSIAUL ULII-FUO] 910 (4)

000000969
000°00%°06%°1

000°000°00L°1

000°000°000°C
000°000°000°T
655°680°€9S°1
00000000

€LT985Y9T 1

R ) "UOIIq 6°S ANA JO 9NJBA JUSUNSIAUL U [Im Auedwio)) y003§ jutof SuoT Juey] odsussy ‘Auedwo)) ¥o01g
“._Eo [ Ae uu quig 3ucy Fuog ‘(Auedwo) }001§ utor 9 Suoy Suog) Auedwo)) Jo01g IO UORONLSUOL) PUE Surpes ], Suoy Suog ‘Auedwo)) y003§ JuIof 1By 1B SUOK Suog
:A[oWe ‘sjuaunsaAur wLs)-Suo] SurAreoar sayuedwo) sY) JO 4707 1€ JOquIssa( SuIpus Jeak [BOS ST 10] SIUSWLNEIS [BIOUBUL] S PAJOS[[02 194 j0u sey uonerodio) ayL

(000°000°LES)

(000°000°00L°T)

(000°000°000°T)

000°000°969°T
000°00¥°06%°1

000°000°00L°1

000°000°000°C

000°000°000°T

: 0T1°8€0°1 3 -

(000°000°96<°F) () Y6 EIT'STTIT (000°000°LET°E) (%) 000°00%°988°L

aNA ANA aNA aNA

SDUBMO[[Y an[eaA dieyg AM[BA [BUISLIO SQUEBMO||Y anjeA Iiey aN[eA [BUISLIQ
$Z0Z/10/10 ¥70Z/T1/1€

aNA g

uoneiodio) el yuig Suoy Suog

Kuedwo) 30038 juror SuoT Suey] 0oussy

Kuedwo)

3901§ JUIOf SUIPBI] PUB UONONISU0) Suoy 5uog
Kueduron

NO01§ JUIOf UOIDNIISUOD) PUR JUAUNSIAU] § SUOH Suog
Kuedwo) 30018 Jutof JBYd 1B SUOH SU0S

(1) Auedwo)

(2018 JUIO[ JUSWISIAU] 2IBISH [89Y TUOH Fuog

(1) Auedwo)

001§ JUTor ASO[OUYD9 ], PUB JUSUNSIAU] UANSN 0B L
(nn) AueduwoD

Y0018 juror dnoln rwnjeyg wmulwny SuoH Suog
(11) Aueduro)) 901§ JUIO[ UOHIONISUOD) FTUOH SU0S

SIUIW]SIAUT WLIA)-Fuo] 1O (q

(PAnuUnuo)) SIUSWISIAUL WLIAI-3UO]  TT'S

$707 JoquI229(] 1§ popua Jeak oy 10

(QINNIINOD) SINTNALVLS TYIONVNIL CALVATTOSNOD THL OL STLON

doueulq Jo ANSIUIA 9 JO 107/21/2Z PeYEP OLF-LL/y107/20T "ON Fe[nord 1opun panss]
NH/NT - 60 g wiog

IoUBH “I01nSI( OH AR ‘pIBp\ nUJ US X 19318 Juong Uy ‘0L "ON

NOILVIOJIOD MD0LS INIOL ONOHONOS



SONGHONG JOINT STOCIK CORPORATION
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward, Tay Ho

District, Hanoi

Form B 09 — DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

5.14 Trade payables

Unit: VND
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Repayable Repayable
Original value amount Original value amount
Short-term 254,419,402,443 ) 254,980,001,644 )

Song Hong Urban
Construction JSC

Song Hong No.1
Construction JSC

Song Hong Tay Do Joint

Stock Company

Dong Bac Shipbuilding

27,249,548,436

19,170,145,785

17,814,866,775

5,705,182,639

27,249,548,436

19,170,145,785

17,814,866,775

5,705,182,639

Industry JISC

Others 184,479,658,808 185,040,258,009

Total 254,419,402,443 - 254,980,001,644 -
Payables to related parties 82,445,464,946 79,837,100,518

Details in Note 7.1

(*) The Corporation has not yet assessed its solvency and determined the amount of debt it can pay at the
time of preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024.

5.15 Prepayments from customers

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

Short-term 82,875,479,764 72,994,558,878
Tay Ho Villa Project (i) 24,655,500,000 24,655,500,000
Trieu Chau One Member Limited Liability Company (ii) 9,090,909,091 -
Others 49,129,070,673 48,339,058,878
Total 82,875,479,764 72,994,558,878

(i) The advance received from the transfer of the land lot in the Tay Ho villa area has been recorded under
the item “Inventories™ in the Consolidated Financial Statements with an amount of VND 24,337,070,270.

(i1) This amount represents a payable that Trieu Chau One Member Limited Liability Company has agreed to
settle with the Corporation through the transfer of the Royal Song Hong Hotel project, in accordance with
Agreement No. 02/2024/SHG dated 29 March 2024. As at the date of preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2024, the procedures for project handover
have not yet been completed.
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward, Tay Ho

District, Hanoi

Form B 09 — DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/T'T-BTC

dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

5.16 Accrued expenses

31/12/2024 . 01/01/2024
VND VND
Short-term 877,690,771,778 940,051,417,007
Interest expense 591,308,101,084 535,162,905,258
Accrued cost of sales of investment properties 27,671,075,628 27,671,075,628
Accrued cost of construction works (i) 231,772,352,756 231,772,352,756
Accrued interest expense payable to Trieu Chau One Member
Limited Liability Company (ii) - LE540.285,300
Accrued interest expense payable to the Head Office 626,155,557 582,711,112
Others 26,313,086,753 26,313,086,753
Long-term 29,339,344,633 29,339,344,633
Interest expense 29,339,344,633 29,339,344,633
Total 907,030,116,411 969,390,761,640

()

(i)

Accrued expenses without VAT invoices, accrued over many fiscal years and not yet settled as of
December 31, 2024.

According to Appellate Commercial Judgment No. 45/2018/KDTM-PT dated 12 April 2018 of the People’s
Court of Hanoi City and Decision No. 01/QD-CCTHADS dated 13 December 2018 of the Civil Judgment
Enforcement Department of Tay Ho District, Hanoi City, Song Hong Joint Stock Corporation was required
to continue paying overdue interest (on the outstanding principal amount of VND 95.43 billion) that had not
yet been settled to the Vietnam Asset Management Company (VAMC) from the day following the first-
instance ftrial date (19 June 2017). As of 31 December 2021, a portion of the principal debt had been
transferred to Trieu Chau One Member Limited Liability Company, amounting to VND 89.74 billion.
During the period, pursuant to Resolution No. 23/NQ-HDQT dated 28 February 2024 approving the
Corporation’s debt settlement and judgment enforcement plan, and the meeting minutes between the
Corporation and Trieu Chau One Member Limited Liability Company dated 01 March 2024, Trieu Chau
Company agreed to write off part of the Corporation’s judgment enforcement obligation amounting to VND
94,139,171,7006, as well as the entire overdue interest on the principal debt from 01 July 2023.
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Form B 09 — DN/HN
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward, Tay Ho Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
5.17 Other short-term payments

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND

Short-term 318,951,454,518 259,482,207,530
Trade Union fees 1,014,686,261 1,001,625,388
Social insurance 6,191,672,979 6,166,499,610
Health insurance 603,634,421 597,541,399
Privatization payables 4,176,729,883 4,176,729,883
Unemployment insurance 253,896,262 251,400,754
Short-term deposits received 40,477,647 40,477,647
Others 306,670,357,065 247,247,932,849
-Payable to 'T s'mgsh'an Vietnam Stainless Steel Import-Export 200,000,000,000 )
Company Limited (i)
-Payable for proceeds from the auction of state-owned shares
under the Ministry of Construction (ii) L2 400,627 136, 202,000.000
- Others 104,877,896,438 108,345,332,849
Long-term 4,679,502,059 4,679,502,059
L011.g—term.dep051ts and fzollaterals received for land use right 200,000,000 200,000,000
certificate issuance of Villa D3
Payable t-{) md1v1duals.contr1butu1g capital to Song Hong 174,205,096 174,205,006
Construction No. 1 Joint Stock Company
Others 4,305,296,963 4,305,296,963
Total 323,630,956,577 264,161,709,589
Payables to related parties 15,721,690,790 15,721,690,790

Details in Note 7.1

(i) According to Notice No. 59/2024/TC-TB dated 24 April 2024, the debt collection right in the amount of VND
200,000,000,000 previously held by Trieu Chau One Member Limited Liability Company has been transferred to
Inox Tsingshan Vietnam Import - Export Company-Limited.

(ii) In 2023, the Corporation received proceeds from the auction of State-owned shares divested from the
Corporation. However, the procedures for the transfer of ownership rights from the Ministry of Construction
to the new sharcholder, Song Hong Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company, had not been completed at
that time. On 16 January 2024, the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation confirmed the
successful transfer of securities. The Corporation has remitted the proceeds from the public auction of State-
owned shares, amounting to VND 137,240,139,373, to the Central Government Budget. The remaining
amount of VND 1,792,460,627 was temporarily transferred to the Corporation’s account. The Corporation is
responsible for remitting the remaining amount (if any) to the Central Government Budget after deducting
the share transfer costs as approved by the Ministry of Construction based on the finalized settlement.
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Form B 09 — DN/HN
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward, Tay Ho Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

5.17 Provisions
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Short-term 401,091,346 401,091,346
Others 401,091,346 401,091,346
Long-term - 212,479,849,873
Trieu Chau One Member Limited Liability Company (i) - 212,479,849,873
Total 401,091,346 212,880,941,219
(i)  According to Appellate Commercial Judgment No. 45/2018/KDTM-PT dated 12 April 2018 of the

People’s Court of Hanoi City and Decision No. 01/QD-CCTHADS dated 13 December 2018 of the
Civil Judgment Enforcement Department of Tay Ho District, Hanoi City regarding the enforcement of
Judgment Enforcement Decision No. 492/QD-CCTHADS dated 22 August 2018, Song Hong Joint
Stock Corporation was obligated to pay Vietnam Asset Management Company (VAMC) an amount of
VND 238,974,988,001, and to continue paying overdue interest on the principal debt of VND 95.43
billion.

According to Notification No. 01/TB-TANDCC-KDTM dated 2 January 2019 from the High People’s
Court in Hanoi, Song Hong Joint Stock Corporation had no legal grounds to file a cassation review
against Appellate Commercial Judgment No. 45/2018/KDTM-PT dated 12 April 2018 issued by the
People’s Court of Hanoi City.

A portion of the provision for payable to VAMC was transferred to Trieu Chau One Member Limited
Liability Company under Decision No. 01/QD-CCTHADS dated 20 December 2021 of the Civil
Judgment Enforcement Department of Tay Ho District, with a value of VND 233,284,357,901.

During the year, pursuant to Resolution No. 23/NQ-HDQT dated 28 February 2024 approving the
Corporation’s debt settlement and judgment enforcement plan, and the meeting minutes dated 01
March 2024 between the Corporation and Trieu Chau One Member Limited Liability Company, the
two parties agreed on a debt settlement plan under which a portion of the Corporation’s enforcement
obligation was reduced through the transfer/sale of assets. The total amount reduced from the
Corporation’s enforcement obligation was VND 36,700,000,000, including: All shares held by Song
Hong Joint Stock Corporation in Song Hong Energy Joint Stock Company (3,649,822 shares), with a
reduction value of VND 26,700,000,000; and the Royal Song Hong Hotel Project (assets on land and
land use rights), with a reduction value of VND 10,000,000,000

According to Notification No. 59/2024/TC-TB dated 24 April 2024, the debt collection right in the
amount of VND 200,000,000,000 previously held by Trieu Chau One Member Limited Liability
Company was transferred to Tsingshan Vietnam Stainless Steel Import and Export Company Limited.
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,
Tay Ho District, Hanoi

Form B 09 - DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
5.19 Owners’ equity (Continued)

c. Capital transactions with shareholders and appropriation of dividends
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Shareholders’ capital
Opening balance 270,000,000,000 270,000,000,000
Increased during the period = -
Decreased during the period - -
Closing balance 270,000,000,000 270,000,000,000
Dividend, Profit distribution . "
d. Shares
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Shares Shares
Quantity of registered shares 27,000,000 27,000,000
Quantity of issued shares 27,000,000 27,000,000
Common shares 27,000,000 27,000,000
Purchased shares (treasury shares) 39,000 39,000
Common shares 39,000 39,000
Outstanding shares 26,961,000 26,961,000
Common shares 26,961,000 26,961,000
Par value of outstanding shares (VND/share) 10,000 10,000
e. The Company’s funds
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Development investment fund 26,413,502,573 26,413,502,573
FFund for enterprise support and restructuring 25,981,000 25,981,000

Other funds under owner’s equity

6,158,136,532

6,158,136,532

6. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT

6.1 Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services

Revenue from provision of services

Total

Revenue from related parties
Details in Note 7.1
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Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
12,007,159,186 8,995,873,211
12,007,159,186 8,995,873,211
= 2,337,236,363
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Tay Ho District, Hanoi

Form B 09 — DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
6.2 Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods and services

Total

6.3 TFinancial income

Interest income from deposits
Dividends received

Gains from deferred sales

Profit from disposal of investments

Total

6.4 Financial expenses

Interest expense

Reversal of allowance for financial investment
Losses on disposal of financial investments

Interest expense payable to Trieu Chau One Member
Limited Company

Other interest expense payable

Total

6.5 General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses
Employee expenses

Materials expenses

Office supplies expenses

Amortization and Depreciation expenses
Charges and fee

Provision expenses

Outsourcing expenses

Other cash expense

36

Year 2024
VND

Year 2023
VND

6,082,268,582

1,503,026,752

6,082,268,582 1,503,026,752
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND YND
10,977,519 3,765,966
1,094,946,600 2,189,731,589

- 50,000,000

2,530,589,063 -
3,636,513,182 2,243,497,555
Year 2024 Year 2023
YND VND
56,145,195,826 55,991,793,651
(1,159,000,000) -
45.074,218,457 7 -
- 7,284,729,835

43,444,445 288,297,223
100,103,858,728 63,564,820,709
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VYND
1,276,265,554 25,504,247,054
4,899,554,936 4,275,395,657
80,858,589 52,955,732
119,191,095 48,260,550
94,114,480 116,237,408
21,359,599 615,757,268
(4,492,727,872) 17,023,274,038
616,010,917 296,253,290
5,937,903,810 3,076,113,111
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Form B 09 - DN/HN

No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward, Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
Tay Ho District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

6.6  Other income/ Other expenses

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

Other income
Rental income from premises 72,525,926 168,000,000
Debt written off, no longer payable to Investment and
Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4 i 345,830,385
Debt wrltter} o.ﬂ“, no longer payable to Trieu Chau MTV 101,041,288,373 i
Company Limited (*)
Disposals of fixed assets 247,138,048 655,369,403
Others 1,080,260,311 1,000,100,111
Total 102,441,212,658 5,269,299,899
Other expenses
Exp(?n.ses fc.n' !ate-payment penalties of so.(ua[ insurance and 1,191,382,201 567,839,688
administrative fines related to tax regulations
Project cost adjustment according to Decision No. 109/QD-
UBND issued by the People’s Committee of Da Nang City 3,980,670,741 -
dated January 8, 2019
Enforcement costs - 513,796,036
Others 717,483,615 237,019,335
Total 5,889,536,557 1,318,655,059
Net other income/ expenses 96,551,676,101 3,950,644,840

(*) According to the minutes of the meeting between the Corporation and Trieu Chau One Member Limited
Liability Company dated March 1, 2024, both parties agreed on the settlement plan for the enforcement
obligation between the Corporation and Trieu Chau One Member Limited Liability Company, whereby the
enforcement obligation of Song Hong Joint Stock Corporation is reduced by VND 101,041,288,373

6.7  Basic earnings per share

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Profit after corporate income tax (VND) (1,086,950,949) (70,379,580,222)
Profit after tax attributable to the parent company (911,084,755) (70,396,946,559)
Profit after tax attributable to non-controlling interests (175,866,194) 17,366,337
Profit/ Loss distributable to common shareholders (VIND) (911,084,755) (70,396,946,559)
Average quantity of outstanding common shares 27,000,000 27,000,000
Treasury shares (shares) 39,000 39,000
Welgllt_ed average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 26,961,000 26,961,000
the period (shares)
Basic earnings per share (VND/ share) (33.8) (2,611.1)
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SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward,

Tay Ho District, Hanoi

Form B 09 — DN/HN
Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

6.8 Production and business expenses by factors

Raw material expenses

Employee expenses

Amortization and Depreciation expenses
Provision expenses

Outsourcing expenses

Other cash expenses

Total

7. OTHER INFORMATION

7.1  Transactions with related parties and Related party balance

a. Information of related parties

Related parties

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
80,858,589 52,955,732
4,899,554,936 4,275,395,657
94,114,480 222,232,408
(4,492,727,872) 17,023,274,038
616,010,917 296,253,290
6,132,999,964 3,794,676,389
7,330,811,014 25,664,787,514
Relations

Nguyen Thuong Huyen

Nguyen Thi Huong

Tran Bich Thuy

Tran Thi Than Ha

Song Hong Steel Joint Stock Company

Song Hong 36 Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Investment Import - Export and Construction
Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Saigon Joint Stock Company

Song Hong No.8 Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Energy Joint Stock Company

Ha Noi Song Hong Property Joint Stock Company

IHa Noi Invest Trading and Traffic Building Construction
Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Investment Construction Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Construction No. 1 Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Tay Do Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Binh Tay Corporation

Song Hong Dai Phat Joint Stock Company

Song Hong 9 Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Construction and Trading Joint Stock Company

Members of the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, the Executive
Board, other management personnel, and close family members of these
individuals

38

Major shareholders
Major shareholders
Major shareholders
Major shareholders
Associate company
Associate company

Associate company

Associate company
Associate company
Associdte company
Associate company

Associate company

Associate company
Associate company
Associate company
Other long-term investments
Other long-term investments
Other long-term investments
Other long-term investments

Significant influence




SONGHONG JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Form B 09 - DN/HN
No. 70, An Duong Street, Yen Phu Ward, Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Tay Ho District, Hanoi dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

7.1  Transactions with related parties and Related party balance (Continued)

b. Transactions with Key Management Personnel and Shareholders
Year 2024 Year 2023
Trull name Position VND VND
Remuneration for Board of Management and Board of Supervisors
. Chairman (Dismissed from
g |
Tran Huyen Linh 01/10/2024) 315,685,832 290,434,950
; Chairman (Appointed from
Phan Viet Anh 01/10/2024) 310,194,474 -
Cao Tien Trung Head of the Board of 248,679,678 145,197,872
Supervisors
Remuneration for Board of General Directors and others b
: General Director (Appointed '
Dang Minh Quang from 01/10/2024) 77,807,228 - ,‘
General Director (Dismissed |
La Tuan Hung from 29/12/2023) - 269,609,234
: Deputy General Director
. I_ - = -
Tran Phi Hoang (Appointed from 29/12/2023) 241,022,644
Phan Viet Anh Deputy General Director - 120,400,182
Deputy General Director cum
Tran Anh Tai Chief Accountant (Dismissed 278,739,070 232,296,964
from 17/3/2025)
Deputy General Director o
WenysnTine:Toan (Dismissed from 8/8/2024) i 36,112,716 1 ’;
Trinh Xuan Duong Deputy General Director 42,746,236 229,350,722 N ;
Nguyen Minh Quan Deputy General Director 67,298,671 i
Authorized Person for R IE
Nguyen Hoang Anh Tfoimnstion Disalsie 221,438,178 186,121,358
Total 1,803,612,011 1,510,123,998 ol
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

7.1 Transactions with related parties and Related party balance (Continued)

c. Related Party Balance

Receivables

Nature of transaction

31/12/2024
VYND

01/01/2024
VND

a) Joint ventures and associates

Song Hong Steel Joint Stock Company

Song Hong 36 Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Investment Import - Export and
Construction Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Saigon Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Binh Tay Corporation

Song Hong Construction No. 1

Joint Stock Company

b) Other long-term investments
Song Hong Construction and Trading
Joint Stock Company

Receivables
from customers
Receivables

from customers
Receivables
from customers
Receivables

from customers
Receivables

from customers
Receivables
ﬁ‘O[‘I] customers

Receivables
from customers

3,897,962,892
13,505,443,049
205,990,037
19,785,826
73,870,335

3,191,001,774

4,081,977,592

3,897,962,892
13,505,443,049
205,990,037

19,785,826

73,870,335

3,191,001,774

4,081,977,592

Total 24,976,031,505 24,976,031,505
31/12/2024 01/01/2024

Receivables Nature of transaction VIND VND

a) Joint ventures and associates

Song Hong Steel Joint Stock Company Repayments to suppliers 2,800,000,000 2,800,000,000

Song Hong 36 Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Investment Import - Export and
Construction Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Saigon Joint Stock Company

Ha Noi Invest Trading and Traffic Building
Construction Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Investment Cons{ruction

Joint Stock Company

Song Hong Construction No. |
Joint Stock Company

b) Other long-term investments
Song Hong Construction and Trading
Joint Stock Company

Total

Repayments to suppliers

Repayments to suppliers
Repayments to suppliers

Repayments to suppliers

Repayments to suppliers

Repayments to suppliers

Repayments to suppliers

40

7,100,654,421
6,000,000,000
126,390,086,131

1,373,400,000
1,000,000,000

1,143,596,893

459,622,441

7,100,654,421
6,000,000,000
126,390,086,131

1,373,400,000
1,000,000,000

1,143,596,893

459,622,441

146,267,359,886

146,267,359,886
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

7.1 ‘Transactions with related parties and Related party balance (Continued)

¢.  Related Party Balance (Continued)

Receivables

Nature of transaction

31/12/2024
VND

01/01/2024
VND

a) Joint ventures and associates
Song Hong 36 Joint Stock Company
Song Hong Investment Import - Export and
Construction Joint Stock Company
Song Hong Saigon Joint Stock Company
Ha Noi Song Hong Property
Joint Stock Company
Ha Noi Invest Trading and Traffic Building
Construction Joint Stock Company
Songhong Urban Construction
Joint Stock Company
Song Hong Investment Construction
Joint Stock Company
Song Hong Construction No. 1
Joint Stock Company
b) Other long-term investments
Song Hong Construction and Trading
Joint Stock Company

Other receivables
Other receivables
Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

26,527,320,279
1,929,686,382
8,792,920,720
3,320,000,000

862,285,019

528,916,364
874,539,347

59,951,900

35,483,147,873

26,527,320,279
1,929,686,382
8,792,920,720
3,320,000,000

862,285,019
528,916,364
874,539,347

59,951,900

35,495,747,873

Total 78,378,767,884 78,391,367,884
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Accounts payable and other payables Nature of transaction VND VND
a) Joint ventures and associates
Song Hong 36 Joint Stock Company Trade payables 75,267,249 75,267,249
Song Hong Saigon Joint Stock Company Trade payables 1,275,927,812 1,275,927,812
Song Hong 8 Joint Stock Company
> d bl 12
(St Eirie MEtaes) Trade payables 6,123,693,316 4,737,157,555
Song Hong Hanoi Real Estate
-ade payabl 2
Toint Stock Compaiy Trade payables ,528,899,709 2,528,899,709
Hanoi Investment, Trading & Traftic
’ = Trad rable 2,330,952, 2,330,952,
Construction Joint Stock Company SERE AA0932,76) 230,252,761
Sonp:Hog Ltban Constivietion Trade payables 27249548436  27,249,548,436
Joint Stock Company
i Iting Joint Stock
Song Hong Construction Consulting Joint Stoc Teafie:payables 197,063,812 197,063 812
Company
i .1
SomgHong Constncion Ho Trade payables 19,170,145,785 19,170,145,785
Joint Stock Company
Song Hong Tay Do Joint Stock Company Trade payables 17,814,866,775 17,814,866,775
b) Other long-term investments
Song Hong Dai Phat Joint Stock Company Trade payables 1,324,178,612 1,324,178,612
g i Construction Joint
Song Hong 9 Investment and Construction Join Trade piybles 277675257 277,675,257
Stock Company
Song Hong Trading and Installation Joint Stock
) Trade pay
Company (Song Hong 6 Joint Stock Company) SlE prapbics WA BA50,318,755
Total 82,445,464,946 79,837,100,518
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7.1 Transactions with related parties and Related party balance (Continued)

c.  Related Party Balance (Continued)

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Payables Nature of transaction VND VND
a) Joint ventures and associates
Song Hong Saigon Joint Stock Company Other Payables 9,578,124,594 9,578,124,594
Seig kg tinal Ecal Esame Other Payables 101,120,000 101,120,000
Joint Stock Company
Hanoi Investment Trading and Traffic '
Construction Joint Stock Company GherLupublcs 11,259,582 3,209,382
Song Hong Construction Consulti
BIE = 28 AOSIRION SANEIIes Other Payables 18,083,013 18,083,013
Joint Stock Company
S Hi Construction No. 1 '
i ey SLAGHETIEE B0 Other Payables 2,125,000,000 2,125,000,000
Joint Stock Company
b) Other long-tern investments -
Song Hong Alumi Shalumi G
ONg ONS MU Shatiit rotp Other Payables 3,862,093,301 3,862,093,801
Joint Stock Company
Total 15,721,690,790 15,721,690,790
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Loans and borrowings Relations VND VND
Pham Van Nghia Board of Management 38,850,223 340,000,000
d.  Transactions with related parties
Year 2024 Year 2023
Sales of goods and services Nature of transaction VND VND

Associate company

Other long-term investments

Song Hong Technology and Construction Joint
Stock Company

Total

Leasing of premises
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(i)

7.3

7.4.

Other information

According to Contract No. 280909/LILAMA-SHC dated September 28, 2009, between the Corporation
and Vietnam Installation Mechanical Joint Stock Corporation (LILAMA), the contract value for the
Corporation’s construction work on the Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant Project was VND 1,315.8
billion, which was fully assigned to the Project Management Board of the Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power
Plant Construction Project for management and execution. According to Resolution No. 686/NQ-DKVN
dated January 27, 2014, the Vietnam Oil and Gas Group (PVN) approved unforeseen additional costs for
the entire Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant project of approximately VND 1,090 billion. Furthermore,
on March 14, 2016, PVN issued Document No. 1429/QD-DKVN approving the second adjusted total
investment for the Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant Project at VND 33,576.29 billion. Accordingly, the
estimated value after appraisal for the construction scope executed by the Corporation increased by
approximately VND 213.8 billion compared to the signed contract. The general contractor requested
PVN to consider adjusting the unforeseen additional costs of this project. As of the date of this
Consolidated financial statement, PVN has approved the adjustment of the total investment for the
project, including the unforeseen additional costs. The Corporation is currently working to reconcile the
volume of work performed with the general contractor.

Subsequent events

Song Hong Joint Stock Corporation is currently the defendant in a lawsuit filed by Lilama 10 Joint
Stock Company requesting payment of the remaining amount under Economic Contract No.
160312/LILAMA10-BDHVALI dated March 16, 2012. The case was accepted by the Tay Ho District
People’s Court as per the Notice of Acceptance of Commercial Litigation Case No. 01/2025/TLST-
KDTM dated January 10, 2025. The lawsuit concerns a request for payment of the value of
construction work that has been inspected and settled by both parties, but the Corporation delayed
payment. Specifically, Lilama 10 requested the Corporation to pay the remaining amount of VND
3,703,714,740 after a prior advance payment of VND 628,652,940. Currently, the case is in the
reconciliation and evidence submission stage. The Corporation has not yet fully determined other
possible arising financial obligations including court fees and other costs (if any), and therefore has
not made a provision in the Consolidated financial statements for the year 2024. The Corporation will
adjust the Consolidated financial statements when an official court judgment is issued.

Comparative figures

Comparative figures are -taken from the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 which are audited by CPA VIETNAM Auditing Company Limited — A Member of
INPACT.

Hanoi, 22 May 2025

Preparer Deputy Manager of Finance General Director
and Accounting Department (In charge 01)///;_.,_ ——
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Nguyen Thi Khanh Hau Le Thi Hong Hanh "":"Dz'{i'lgMinh Quang
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